From: Russell Nielson

To: Brock McMillan; Carl Hanson; "Dennis Shiozawa"; Dixon Woodbury; Gary Mack; Larry StClair; Michael Dunn;
Richard Robison; Don Breakwell; Danny Yeo; Jeanne Gubler; Jim Armstrong; Amanda Lake; Barb Hehl; Emily
Eyre; Jim Wooten; "Kerly Barben (Kerly_Barben@byu.edu)"; Marjean Garowski; Melanie Peine; Patty Jones

Cc: James Porter; Rick Jellen; Michael Barnes; Douglas Belliston

Bcc: Russell Nielson

Subject: University Meals & Hosting policy clarifications

Date: Thursday, September 03, 2015 5:02:00 PM

Attachments: LFSCI_Addendum to Hostinag Meals policy_updated Mar112015.pdf

University_Implementing procedures for the meals and hostina policy_Aua252015.pdf
University_Meals_hosting policy Aug 11 2008 Aug2015 download.pdf

Recently questions have come up regarding the University Meals and Hosting Policy and the
correlating procedural document. For reference purposes | have also attached three documents: 1)
University Meals hosting policy August 11, 2008, 2) University Implementing procedures for the
meals and hosting policy August 25, 2015, 3) LFSCI Addendum to Hosting Meals policy updated
March 11, 2015. In trying to seek understanding, | visited with Doug Belliston, the University
Controller and he has helped to clarify some of the concerns as noted below in the following 4

points:

1.

The Meals and Hosting Policy first paragraph states:
“University personnel are responsible for providing their own meals and snacks during the

work day. However, university funds may be used for business meals when a meal is
necessary to conduct university business; that is, without the meal, university business could
not have been reasonably carried out.”

Clarification: If it is determined that infrequent meals and snacks are needed then

adequate documentation is to be provided which lists the detailed business purpose
identifying what was purchased, why it is needed, and list the names of those who
consumed the food. Refer to the implementing procedures for listing the names of those
served. Snacks are interpreted as candy, cookies, fruit, donuts, soda, bottled water, etc.

The Meals and Hosting Policy second paragraph states:
“The university provides an annual dinner for full-time and non-student part-time personnel,

retirees, spouses of deceased personnel, and a guest for each attendee. Guidelines for the
annual dinner are found in the implementing procedures.”

Clarification: In September 2015 the words “an annual dinner” were clarified by the

Academic Vice President, in that it is appropriate for a College and for a Department to hold
(1) annual dinner in the same calendar year. It is not appropriate for a department to hold
more than (1) annual dinner in the same calendar year.

The Meals and Hosting Policy third paragraph states:
“It is not appropriate for departments to use university funds to purchase gifts or

refreshments for individual recognition, including: farewell or retirement parties (except as
provided in the Retirement Policy), resignations or terminations, birthdays, births or
weddings, boss or secretary remembrances, and class parties. Meals that include students
should have the dean or director’s approval.”

Clarification: Meals (non-snacks) which include students that are not in “Travel” status are
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Updated March 11, 2015

Brigham Young University
College of Life Sciences
Addendum to the University Meals and Hosting Policy

In addition to the University Meals and Hosting Policy and Implementing Procedures the
Deans and Department Chairs of the College of Life Sciences have approved the below
procedural addendum.

When hosting prospective faculty, honored guests, seminar speakers, visiting scholars
and others on behalf of the University in the Provo area the approved amount to spend
would be according to the following meal per diem options:

Option A Option B Option C
40% increase above
20% increase above baseline requires
baseline requires Dept. Chair and
Dept. Chair written Deans written
approval if greater approval if greater
University Baseline: than Option A and than Option B and
Meal Provo meal per diem | less than or equal to less than or equal to
Breakfast $ 8 $ 10 $ 11
Lunch $ 12 $ 14 $ 17
Dinner $ 26 $ 31 $ 36
Incidentals $ 5 $ 6 $ 6
Total $§ 51 $ 61 $ 70

The above table for the Provo area per diem excludes taxes and tips. When hosting
someone outside of the Provo area or when in travel status, the amount is limited to the
University per diem, including taxes and tips, as listed for that location online at the
Purchasing and Travel web page.

It is encouraged when hosting others to limit the size of the group to be 5 or 6 including
spouses. Remember the principle of the widow’s mite and that any funds used to host
someone are University funds regardless of the source.







MEALS AND HOSTING POLICY - IMPLEMENTING PROCEDURES

% When it has been determined that a business meal is required to conduct university business,
it is necessary that the transaction be properly documented and recorded as specified by IRS
regulations. This includes:

>
>

Y/

Y

>

Submitting a receipt showing the date, place, and itemized details of the expenditures.

If there are twelve or fewer participants, the first and last names of each individual should be
provided along with their title or position and organizational affiliation.

If there are thirteen or more participants, they may be referred to as a group, provided that
the group name and other information about the group is descriptive enough that they are
well identified.

If non-business guests are also present at the meal, the associated cost should be removed
from the reimbursement request.

A brief, but complete description of the business purpose and/or topics discussed should be
listed.

Meals not properly documented represent taxable income to either the participants or the
responsible BYU employee.

¢ Payments for business meals and hosting:

Business meals paid for with personal funds or a personal credit card should be reimbursed
through the Y-Expense system.

Business meals paid for while a person is in travel status should be made with a university
travel card.

Business meals may also be paid for with a university purchasing card.

Where a business meal involves an entity that does not take a check, personal funds may be
used or a payment can be processed through Fast Track.

In the rare instances where an entity will not accept a check and personal funds are not

available and time does not permit Fast Track processing, a convenience check may be used.
#e7.725

< The current allowable rate for the approved annual employee dinner is $95Q per planned
attendee including meals, decorations, entertainment, etc. Any excess must be paid by the
individual participants.
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MEALS AND HOSTING POLICY
11 August 2008

University personnel are responsible for providing their own meals and snacks during the work
day. However, university funds may be used for business meals when a meal is necessary to
conduct university business; that is, without the meal, university business could not have been
reasonably carried out.

The university provides an annual dinner for full-time and non-student part-time personnel,
retirees, spouses of deceased personnel, and a guest for each attendee. Guidelines for the
annual dinner are found in the implementing procedures.

It is not appropriate for departments to use university funds to purchase gifts or refreshments
for individual recognition, including: farewell or retirement parties (except as provided in the
Retirement Policy), resignations or terminations, birthdays, births or weddings, boss or
secretary remembrances, and class parties. Meals that include students should have the dean
or director’s approval.

Business meals must be properly documented (participant names and relationship to the
university, business purpose for the meal, date, receipts detailing the expenses claimed).
Undocumented meals represent taxable income to the participants.

Business meals catered or hosted on campus should comply with the Catering and Food
Distribution.

APPLICABILITY: This policy applies to all meals and hosting paid for with university funds, from
whatever sources. It does not apply to meals reimbursed while on travel status, unless the
meal involved the hosting of a university guest.

IMPLEMENTING PROCEDURES:
http://finserve2.byu.edu/ files/ secure/policy in%20 practice/MealsandHostingPolicy.pdf

RESPONSIBLE UNIVERSITY OFFICER: Chief Financial Officer
RESPONSIBLE UNIVERSITY OFFICE: Office of Regulatory Accounting and Reporting
PRIOR VERSION: October 27, 2005

RELATED UNIVERSITY POLICIES:
e Travel Policy (meals while in travel status)
e Catering and Food Distribution (meals catered or hosted on campus)
e Faculty/Administrative/Staff Remembrance Policy (recognition of hospitalization, birth
of children, or death of full-time personnel and their families)
e Retirement Policy (recognition of retirees)

Meals and Hosting — August 11, 2008
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to be pre-approved by the Dean prior to the meal being served. This request is to be
submitted via email to the Dean and is to include the following 5 points:
1) A description of the business purpose, listing the reasons why it is important to feed
the student(s).
) Estimated # of students that will participate in the meal.
3) Indicate when the meal(s) will be served.
) Anticipated vendor of who will be providing the meal and what will be served.
5) Estimated total cost of the meal.
The Dean’s confirmation email back will indicate the written pre-approval and is to be
attached with the documentation receipts when completing the expense claim for the
student meals. For students that are in “Travel” status, refer to the University Student
Travel Policy.

4. The Meals and Hosting Policy — Implementing Procedures final paragraph states:
“The current allowable rate for the approved annual employee dinner is $19.75 (2015 rate)
per planned attendee including meals, decorations, entertainment, etc. Any excess must be
paid by the individual participants.”

Clarification: The term “planned attendee” is the number of guests that are invited and not
the ones that have specifically R.S.V.P.”d back.

Thank you for your willingness to ensure that we as a College are following the policies and
procedures which are in place to help safeguard the Universities assets. | appreciate your careful
and wise planning as you administer the sacred University funds within your areas. | invite you to
contact me if you would like to visit further regarding the above clarifications.

Thank you.

Russ

2-6788



